
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Cabinet 

on Wednesday, 30 October 2019, at 10.00 a.m. 

in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, 
Kendal 

 
 
 
 

Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Giles Archibald Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder 

Robin Ashcroft Economy, Culture and Leisure Portfolio Holder 

Jonathan Brook Deputy Leader and Housing and Innovation Portfolio Holder 

Andrew Jarvis Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder 

Dyan Jones Climate Emergency and Localism Portfolio Holder 

Eric Morrell Customer and Commercial Services and People Portfolio Holder 

Suzie Pye Health, Wellbeing and Financial Resilience Portfolio Holder 

 
 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
 
Monday, 21 October 2019 
 
Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
 

For all enquiries, please contact Inge Booth, Senior Committee Services Officer. 

Telephone: 01539 793190 

 
Email: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  CABINET EXECUTIVE DECISIONS  5 - 14 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the Executive Decisions 
made by Cabinet on 11 September 2019. 

 

3  DELEGATED EXECUTIVE DECISIONS  15 - 20 

 To receive the Delegated Executive Decisions made by Portfolio Holders or 
Officers on 12 and 26 September 2019. 

 

4  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

5  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

6  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations 
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no 
later than 0:01am (one minute past midnight) two working days before the 
meeting.  Information on how to make the application can be obtained by 
viewing the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or by contacting the 
Committee Services Team on 01539 733333. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 
 
 To receive any questions or representations which have been received 

from members of the public. 
 
(2) Deputations and Petitions 
 
 To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 

members of the public. 

 

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


7  FORWARD PLAN   

 To note the contents of the Forward Plan due to be published on 29 October 
2019 (to follow). 

 

8  COUNCIL PLAN PERFORMANCE MONITORING REPORT QUARTER TWO  21 - 66 

 To monitor progress against the measures of success as detailed within the 
Council Plan 2019. 

 

9  SCALING ON STREET CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE (SOSCI)  67 - 74 

 To consider future involvement in the Innovate UK funded project.  

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this Part of the Agenda. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



31 
11.09.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

EXECUTIVE DECISION NOTICE 
 
CABINET 
 
A record of the decisions made at the meeting of the Cabinet held on 
Wednesday, 11 September 2019, at 10.00 a.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

Giles Archibald (Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder) (Chairman) 
 

Robin Ashcroft Economy, Culture and Leisure Portfolio Holder 

Jonathan Brook Deputy Leader and Housing and Innovation Portfolio Holder 

Andrew Jarvis Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder 

Dyan Jones Climate Emergency and Localism Portfolio Holder 

Eric Morrell Customer and Commercial Services and People Portfolio Holder 

Suzie Pye Health, Wellbeing and Financial Resilience Portfolio Holder 

 
Also in attendance at the meeting were Shadow Executive Members Tom Harvey (Shadow 
Cabinet Leader (Climate Emergency and Localism Portfolio)), John Holmes (Shadow Cabinet 
Deputy Leader (Finance and Resources)), Helen Irving (Shadow Cabinet (Customer and 
Commercial Services and People Portfolio)), Janette Jenkinson (Shadow Cabinet (Health, 
Wellbeing and Financial Resilience Portfolio)) and Kevin Lancaster (Shadow Cabinet 
(Housing and Innovation Portfolio)). 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Shadow Executive Members James Airey 
(Shadow Cabinet (Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio)), Roger Bingham (Shadow Cabinet 
(Economy, Culture and Leisure Portfolio)) and Mark Wilson (Leader of the Labour Group). 
 
 

Officers 
 

Inge Booth Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Lawrence Conway Chief Executive 

Linda Fisher Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 

Dan Hudson Strategy Lead Specialist 

Alastair McNeill Senior Specialist (Strategy Group) 

Claire Read Finance Specialist 

Fraser Robertson Communications Specialist 

Helen Smith Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 

David Sykes Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources 

CEX/36 CABINET EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 

RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the 
Executive Decisions made by Cabinet on 17 July 2019. 

CEX/37 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that Councillors Robin Ashcroft and John Holmes 
declared interests in Minutes Nos. CEX/50 and CEX/43 respectively. 

Page 5

Item No.2



32 
11.09.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

 

CEX/38 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS 
 
Prior to the meeting, Members had been provided with copies of the Part II Appendix 1 
to the report in relation to Agenda Item No.1 (The Square Public Realm Improvement 
Scheme, Burton-in-Kendal) (see Minutes Nos. CEX/45, CEX/47 and CEX/49 below). 
  
RESOLVED – That, should discussion be necessary, the appendix in Part II of the 
agenda be dealt with following the exclusion of the press and public. 
 

CEX/39 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no questions, representations, deputations or 
petitions have been received in respect of this meeting. 
 

CEX/40 FORWARD PLAN 
 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the Forward Plan published on 13 August 
2019 be noted. 
 

CEX/41 COUNCIL PLAN PERFORMANCE MONITORING QUARTER 1 2019/20 
 
Summary 
 
The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder presented an update report 
on progress with the Council Plan 2019 for Quarter 1 of 2019/20. Monitoring the 
success of the Council Plan reported improvements and ensured that Council services 
addressed the needs of residents in an open and transparent way. The Council was 
committed to delivering high quality, cost effective services that met the needs of 
residents and improved quality of life. The performance management process helped 
the Council to demonstrate how well it was doing. The report also included the 
Council’s Strategic Risk Register, risks mainly relating to matters out of the Council’s 
control, with none on the spectrum of seriousness. 
 
The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder informed Members that the 
report had also been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its 
meeting on 16 August 2018.  He further highlighted a number of areas within the report 
which demonstrated that the Council remained on track to deliver its targets, 
particularly around the provision of affordable housing to rent and work on bringing 
back empty homes into use, and in relation to anthropological climate change and 
reduction in carbon footprint.  He felt that the Council had much to celebrate in terms of 
success.  He thanked officers for their continued efforts during the Council’s process of 
reorganisation.  In closing, the Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder 
stressed the need for the Council now to work on countering biodiversity loss.  
 
Decision 
 
RESOLVED – That the following be noted:- 
 
(1) the Summary of Performance as detailed in the report; and 
 
(2) the detailed risks information contained within Appendix 1 to the report. 
 

Page 6



33 
11.09.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

Reasons for Decision 
 
The report is directly linked to the Council Plan commitment to ensure that the Council 
is equipped to provide the best, most cost effective services.  Details regarding 
performance monitoring are published in line with the Council’s latest Performance 
Management Framework. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
None – the purpose of the report is to receive a performance update.  Council must 
note successes, monitor progress and take action where appropriate. 
 

CEX/42 CORPORATE FINANCIAL MONITORING QUARTER 1, 2019/20 
 
Summary 
 
The Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder presented the Corporate Financial 
Monitoring report for Quarter One of 2019/20, highlighting the Council’s expenditure 
and income during the first three months of the financial year, but also including current 
projections of expenditure for the remainder of the year. 
 
The report had also been considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at its 
meeting on 16 August 2019. 
 
The Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder referred to the Government 
announcement in the previous week of a one-year settlement for Local Government.  
The reform of local government funding had been delayed by 12 months to April 2021, 
which would have a significant impact on the Council’s finances for 2020/21.  Initial 
indications were that the temporary settlement would leave the Authority in a better 
financial position than that shown in the Medium Term Financial Plan presented to 
Council in July 2019.  However, considerable uncertainty remained, and both Cabinet 
and Council would be kept informed. 
 
The Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder, in closing, thanked the Finance Team for 
their work. 
 
In response to a query regarding a perceived over-spend on Customer Connect, the 
Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder explained that the expenditure referred to 
related to one-off transitional costs for redundant staff retained for a period beyond 
1 April in order to assist the Authority during change.  At present, these costs were 
being kept within departmental budgets, although this was to be reviewed by the 
Finance Team.  The Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder emphasised that this 
expenditure was not an over-spend on the Customer Connect Programme. 
 
The Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder responded to a further query about 
outstanding debts relating to Lake Windermere, informing Members that these were 
being dealt with proactively and that bad debts were not taken lightly by the Authority.  
He explained, however, that the debts referred to were complex in nature and that 
considerable financial and legal work had to be carried out in order to resolve them.  
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) provided 
reassurance, indicating that a report was due to be presented to the October meeting 
of the Lake Administration Committee, including detailed information on individual 
debts and  on action taken since the last meeting.  In addition, she informed Members 
that Counsel’s advice was being sought with regard to long-standing debts. 

Page 7



34 
11.09.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

 
The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder took the opportunity to 
draw to Members’ attention to list of projects shown within the Capital Programme as 
examples of what additional work could be carried out as a result of careful financial 
management.  He mentioned, in particular, the work being carried out with local 
communities to improve play areas, highlighting Abbot Hall and Rayrigg Meadow as 
examples. 
 
Decision 
 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the report be noted. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
Regular budget monitoring forms part of the corporate governance arrangements that 
support all Council priorities. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
There are no alternative options. 
 

CEX/43 AFFORDABLE HOUSING GRANT - RAILWAY COTTAGES, NEWBY BRIDGE 
 
Summary 
 
The Deputy Leader and Housing and Innovation Portfolio Holder reported that South 
Lakes Housing was seeking an affordable housing grant of £282,000 to support the 
purchase and improvement of six homes at Railway Cottages, Newby Bridge.  Subject 
to approval of the grant of an award and the required legal agreement being signed, 
South Lakes Housing would undertake to improve the homes to a decent standard.  It 
was anticipated that the purchase of the homes would prevent homelessness of 
potentially very vulnerable tenants, providing suitable homes to a decent standard and 
improved security of tenure. 
 
In presenting the report, the Deputy Leader and Housing and Innovation Portfolio 
Holder wished to point out that this case differed to that relating to Yewbarrow Lodge in 
Grange-over-Sands, which was a sheltered housing unit in a unique location, with 
difficult access. 
 
Shadow Executive Member, Councillor John Holmes, who was a Director on the Board 
of South Lakes Housing, explained that although the proposal would not add to the 
affordable housing offer within the area, consideration had to be given to the potential 
for the existing residents becoming homeless.  He reported on the deplorable 
conditions of the houses in which vulnerable adults were living.  He further drew 
attention to the fact that Homes England had given approval for grant funding.  
Councillor Holmes also referred to Yewbarrow Lodge.  He explained that residents of 
Yewbarrow Lodge could be moved to similar accommodation in Windermere.  He 
stressed that South Lake’s Housing’s paramount concern was with regard to the 
existing tenants of Yewbarrow Lodge.  He advised that proceeds from a sale of the site 
would be put towards provision of affordable homes. 
 

Page 8



35 
11.09.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

Note – At this point in the proceedings, Councillor John Holmes, having declared 
a non-pecuniary interest by virtue of the fact that he was a Director on the Board 
of South Lakes Housing, whilst having no voting rights as a Member of the 
Shadow Cabinet, left the Chamber for the discussion and voting on the item. 
 
Members expressed full support for what was a good example of partnership working 
to improve housing stock within the area and thanking all involved. 
 
Decision 
 
RESOLVED – That approval be given for the award of an affordable housing 
grant of £282,000 to South Lakes Housing and the Director of Strategy, 
Innovation and Resources be delegated authority, in consultation with the Legal, 
Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer), to conclude the 
necessary agreements for the grant funding. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The preferred means of providing financial support is through a grant. The Council is 
developing a loan funding product to enable greater delivery of new build affordable 
homes by Registered Providers. For this particular instance of acquisition and 
refurbishment, it is considered that it best fits with the Council’s affordable housing 
grants scheme. 
 
To assist in the delivery of the Council Plan – Homes to Meet Need and target for 
1,000 homes to rent by 2025. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
The Council could decide not to fund the acquisition of these units for affordable rent. 
However, this is not recommended as this is not in line with the Council’s target for 
1000 homes for affordable rent by 2025 and it is likely that the existing residents, many 
of whom are vulnerable, could be made homeless as a result of the properties being 
sold. 
 

CEX/44 INTRODUCTION OF PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER FOR TOWN AND 
PARISH COUNCILS 
 
Summary 
 
The Customer and Commercial Services and People Portfolio Holder presented a 
report seeking the introduction of a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) on Parish 
and Town Council owned land and an amendment to an existing PSPO on South 
Lakeland District Council (SLDC) owned land to impose restrictions on the use of an 
area and/or those people using that area. The PSPOs would focus on the control of 
dogs.  A consultation process had established that there was support to introduce a 
PSPO for dog control. 
 
The Health, Wellbeing and Financial Resilience Portfolio Holder thanked Arnside, 
Duddon and Staveley-with-Ings parish councils for their engagement. 
 

Page 9



36 
11.09.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

Decision 
 
RESOLVED – That the following be approved:- 
 
(1) the introduction of a PSPO in defined areas on Town and Parish Council 
owned land for the following restrictions:- 
 

 dogs on leads restriction at Arnside Cemetery; 

 dog exclusion restriction at Arnside Playing Field; 

 dogs on leads restriction at Wilson Park, Broughton-in-Furness; and 

 dog exclusion restriction at Staveley Playground; and 
 
(2) the amendment to the existing PSPO on the following SLDC owned land 
following community led improvements and the development of the Kendal Fell 
Management Plan:- 
 

 dogs exclusion restriction location changed and enlarged at Lightburn 
Park and Rayrigg Meadow playgrounds as Appendix 4b and 4c; 

 dog exclusion restriction removed at Hayclose Road and Dogs on Lead 
restriction for a larger area introduced as Appendix 4a; and 

 fouling of land by dogs restriction, dogs on lead by direction restriction, 
maximum number of dogs walked (five) by an individual restriction, 
requiring means to pick up after a dog restriction to Kendal Fell including 
public accessible land owned by Kendal Golf Club as Appendix 3. 

 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The introduction of a PSPO links directly to the Well Being and Environment elements 
of the Council Plan and delivers under Work across boundaries, Creating balanced 
communities, Sustainable environment. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
The alternative option would be to not introduce a new PSPO or amend the existing 
PSPO, however, the consultation responses have established that these restrictions 
are wanted and required. Therefore, not to introduce a new PSPO or amend the 
existing PSPO in place is not a recommended option. 
 

CEX/45 THE SQUARE PUBLIC REALM IMPROVEMENT SCHEME, BURTON-IN-KENDAL 
 
Summary 
 
The Economy, Culture and Leisure Portfolio Holder reported that the Burton-in-Kendal 
Partnership Scheme in Conservation Areas (PSiCA) was a three-year partnership 
scheme, jointly funded by Historic England, the District Council and Burton-in-Kendal 
Parish Council. It comprised a programme of grant-aided repairs to historic properties, 
public realm improvements to the Square and the preparation of a Village Design 
Statement (VDS). The VDS was intended to be adopted by the Council as a 
Supplementary Planning Document to guide the design of new development affecting 
the Conservation Area and its setting. 
 

Page 10



37 
11.09.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

Cabinet had approved the Council entering into the scheme at its meeting on 21 March 
2018 (CEX/121 (2017/18) refers) and had committed £35,000 per year to the Capital 
Programme for three years from the LIPs scheme. Burton-in-Kendal Parish Council 
had committed £5,000 per annum, and Historic England has committed £40,000 per 
annum to match the funding available from the District and Parish Councils. 
Additionally the Cabinet at its meeting on 31 October 2018 had committed £12,000 
towards the initial project development phase of the scheme from the Cumbria Non-
Domestic Rate Pool Income Reserve (CEX/49 2018/19 refers). The PSiCA scheme 
Delivery Plan had been approved by Historic England in March 2019 and was currently 
being implemented. When complete, the Scheme aimed to ensure that the 
Conservation Area was removed from Historic England’s Heritage at Risk Register. 
 
As part of the project development phase, the District Council had commissioned 
Crosby Granger Architects to prepare a detailed design for a public realm improvement 
scheme for the Square, including putting the scheme out to tender and managing the 
implementation of the contract. A final design had been prepared following extensive 
technical and community consultation. In particular the final scheme incorporated 
significant drainage improvements to alleviate local flooding problems following advice 
from Cumbria County Council as local lead flood authority and highway authority. It 
was proposed to commence work in October, or as early as possible, in part to reduce 
the annual risk of flooding to local properties over the winter period. 
 
Note – Prior to the meeting, and subsequent to the completion of the tender evaluation 
exercise, Members had been provided with copies of the Part II Appendix 1 to the 
report (tender details) which was excluded from inspection by members of the public in 
accordance with Section 100 (B) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by 
the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, and, in all the 
circumstances of the case, it was considered that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighed the public interest in disclosing it.  Copies of the document were 
excluded, as it contained information as described in Schedule 12A of the Act as 
follows:- 
 
- Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information).  (Paragraph 3) 
 
Note – At this point in the proceedings, Members voted to exclude the press and 
public in order to discuss the tender details contained within the Part II 
Appendix 1 to the report. 
 

CEX/46 PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED – That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 
of Schedule 12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the Paragraph indicated. 

CEX/47 THE SQUARE PUBLIC REALM IMPROVEMENT SCHEME, BURTON-IN-KENDAL 

- Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information)  

Discussion took place on the tender details contained within the Part II Appendix 1 to 
the report. 

Note – Following this discussion, Members voted to re-admit the press and 
public. 

Page 11



38 
11.09.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

CEX/48 RE-ADMISSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
RESOLVED – That the press and public be re-admitted to the meeting. 
 

CEX/49 THE SQUARE PUBLIC REALM IMPROVEMENT SCHEME, BURTON-IN-KENDAL 
 
Decision 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) subject to the delegated decision at (2) below, approval be given for the 
award of the contract to the successful tenderer as detailed within the Part II 
Appendix 1 to the report and authority be delegated to the Director of Customer 
and Commercial Services to enter into an agreement on behalf of the District 
Council with the successful tenderer; and 
 
(2) the Economy, Culture and Leisure Portfolio Holder, the Housing and 
Innovation Portfolio Holder, the Finance Portfolio Holder and the Director of 
Customer and Commercial Services be delegated authority to approve any 
additional Council contribution required in accordance with the Council’s Budget 
and Policy Framework. 
 
Reasons for Decision 

The public realm scheme for the Square in Burton-in-Kendal links closely to several 
Council priorities in the Council Plan, as set out below:- 

Our vision and values 

The scheme will contribute to:- 

 Creating an environment for people to thrive at the heart of the village of 
Burton and encourage the repair and re-use of other buildings. 

 Empowering customers and communities, as evidenced in the very close 
involvement in the scheme design by Parish Council representatives and 
local residents – and the impetus to explore further improvements after the 
PsiCA scheme concludes. (See paragraph 5.2 of the report.). 

 Being a forward thinking, innovative, council. 

Housing and communities 

The Square enhancement scheme, together with the accompanying building 
repair grant scheme, will contribute in a modest but important way (in the 
context of the centre of Burton-in-Kendal) by promoting the repair and 
residential reuse of at least eight prominent, empty and or derelict properties in 
the centre of  the village. 

Economy and culture 

The scheme will contribute to:- 

 Attracting external funding and delivering critical infrastructure through the 
incorporation of a significant drainage improvement within the scheme and 
associated funding from DEFRA through the County Council. 

 Using culture and built heritage to support our unique offer. 

 Developing town (and village) centres which are attractive and accessible 
for living, working, culture and leisure. 

 Working with local communities to improve, manage and promote 
accessible public realm. 

Page 12



39 
11.09.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

Health and environment 

The scheme contributes to this priority by:- 

 Encouraging cycling and walking, through improved pedestrian surfaces 
and footways. 

 Working with partners in the scheme design to mitigate the impact of major 
flood incidents. 

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
The need for a public realm improvement scheme forms a key element of the overall 
PSiCA programme for Burton-in-Kendal approved by Historic England, so possible 
alternative candidate sites for enhancement have not been considered. However the 
design of the scheme for the Square has gone through many iterations as a result of 
detailed consultation with local residents, Parish Council and Cumbria County Council. 
 
While it does not comprise an alternative option, the consultation on the scheme for the 
Square, has raised the local community’s awareness of the constraints and hazards for 
pedestrians of the busy main road through the village. This has resulted in the 
exploration by the Parish Council of potential funding from the Heritage Lottery Fund 
for a separate, later scheme for traffic calming and enhancement of the whole main 
street through the village. 
 

CEX/50 CABINET APPOINTMENTS/REPRESENTATION ON OUTSIDE BODIES 2019/20 
 
Note – Councillor Robin Ashcroft declared a non-pecuniary interest in this item 
of business by virtue of the fact that he was the Council’s representative on both 
the Cumbria Community Foundation and, currently, the George Moore Education 
Trust.  He left the Chamber during the discussion and voting on the item. 
 
Summary 
 
Further to Minute CEX/12 (2019/20), Cabinet was asked to consider the appointment of 
an alternative representative to the George Moore Education Trust.  Attention had been 
drawn to the fact that the current representative, Councillor Robin Ashcroft, was also a 
member of the Cumbria Community Foundation, resulting in a conflict of interest. 
 
Decision 
 
RESOLVED – That Councillor Giles Archibald be appointed to serve as the 
Council’s representative on the George Moore Education Trust for the remainder 
of 2019/20. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
Appointments to Outside Bodies assist in the delivery of the Council Plan through 
partnership working: “working across boundaries, with a range of other local 
authorities, organisations and businesses.” 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
Not to make appointments, which could affect the Council’s ability to influence partners 
on important strategic issues. 
 
The meeting ended at 10.55 a.m. 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



5 
12.09.2019 Delegated Executive Decisions 
 

 

EXECUTIVE DECISION NOTICE 
 
DELEGATED EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 

A record of delegated decisions made by individual Portfolio holders or officers on 
Thursday, 12 September 2019. 

The reports (unless exempt under Section 100(B)(2) of the Local Government Act 
1972, on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated 
and, in all the circumstances of the case, it is considered that the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing it) are available 
for inspection from the Solicitor to the Council, South Lakeland House, Kendal.   

DEX/3 ASSET OF COMMUNITY VALUE 

(Chief Executive)  
 
Summary  
 
Consideration was given to a nomination from Blawith and Subberthwaite Parish 
Council to list a plot of land named Little Fell, Water Yeat, Ulverston as an Asset of 
Community Value. 
 
The nomination had described Little Fell as being overgrown, but had provided no 
evidence of the main and non-ancillary current use of the land. The nomination stated 
that the community gained pleasure from use of the site which would be lost along with 
the ecological habitat, if the site were to be lost. Despite the wishes of the community 
to protect the land by registering it, there was little detail or evidence provided within 
the nomination about the proposed timescale, funding or deliverability. As a result, and 
in accordance with legislation, there was insufficient evidence to prove that the current 
use of the asset furthered social well-being and, due to a lack of detail on the future 
plans for the site, it was felt that the nominated asset should be added to the list of 
unsuccessful nominations.  
 
Decision 
 
That the plot of land named Little Fell, Water Yeat, Ulverston, LA12 8DJ, be 
entered onto South Lakeland District Council’s list of unsuccessful nominations 
of Assets of Community Value. 
 
Reasons for Decision  
 
To meet legislative requirements. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
Listing the land as an asset of community value. However is likely that it could be 
proven on appeal that the listing would be contrary to the requirements of the 
legislation. 

DEX/4 PRESS AND PUBLIC 

RESOLVED - That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 

Page 15

Item No.3



6 
12.09.2019 Delegated Executive Decisions 
 

 

Part 1 of Schedule 12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraphs indicated. 

 

DEX/5 DISPOSAL OF COUNCIL LAND ADJACENT TO DUKE OF CUMBERLAND PUB, 
KENDAL 
 
- Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding that information)  
 
(Chief Executive) 
 
Summary  
 
Consideration was given to the proposal to dispose of Council Land adjacent to the 
Duke of Cumberland Public House, Kendal.  
 
Decision   
 
(1)  To dispose of the land for the negotiated price with the Council’s standard 
clawback provision.  
 
(2) The Director of Customer and Commercial Services be delegated 
authority to agree all other disposal terms.  
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
To achieve the market value for the land and in line with established local authority 
policy. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected 
 
To retain the land and continue to receive rent based on current terms. 
 

DEX/6 APPLICATION TO MODIFY A RESTRICTIVE COVENANT ON LAND AT 1 FRIARS 
GARTH, CARTMEL 
 
- Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding that information)  
 
(Chief Executive) 
 
Summary  
 
Consideration was given to the application to modify a restrictive covenant on land at 1 
Friars Garth, Cartmel. 
 
Decision  
 
Authorisation be given for the modification of a restrictive covenant thereby 
allowing a new property to be provided, on land previously owned by the Council 
at 1 Friars Garth, Cartmel, and being made available at a permanent discount for 
‘approved persons’ with a ‘local connection’.  
 

Page 16



7 
12.09.2019 Delegated Executive Decisions 
 

 

Reasons for Decision  
 
The decision links to the Council Plan priorities, as follows:- 
 
(1) Creating balanced communities and delivering affordable homes to meet needs 
with:- 

 New affordable homes to rent; 

 New elderly care provision; 

 A range of housing to attract and retain young people; 

 New delivery models including a loans scheme; and 

 Support for Community Housing and self-build. 
 
(2) Encouraging a sustainable environment and inclusive economy, we will build 
resilience by ensuring that new development is sustainable, energy efficient and flood 
resilient. 
 
Alternative options considered and rejected  
 
(1)  To lift the covenants unconditionally. This would not be in accordance with the 

statutory requirement to obtain best consideration in land transactions; 
 
(2) To take cash instead of permanent price reductions. This would not achieve 

affordable housing; and 
 
(3)  To attempt to impose more stringent conditions which may not be considered 

reasonable in the event of an appeal. 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



9 
26.09.2019 Delegated Executive Decisions 
 

 

EXECUTIVE DECISION NOTICE 
 
DELEGATED EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
 
A record of delegated decisions made by individual Portfolio holders or officers on 
Thursday, 26 September 2019. 
 
The reports (unless exempt under Section 100(B)(2) of the Local Government Act 
1972, on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated 
and, in all the circumstances of the case, it is considered that the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing it) are available 
for inspection from the Solicitor to the Council, South Lakeland House, Kendal.   
 

DEX/7 LOCAL PLAN REVIEW - EVIDENCE BASE STUDIES AND PROFESSIONAL 
ADVICE 

(Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources) 
 
Summary 
 
South Lakeland District Council was the Planning Authority for South Lakeland outside 
the National Parks and responsible for preparing the South Lakeland Local Plan.  The 
National Planning Policy Framework stated that Local Plan policies should be reviewed 
at least every five years from the date of their adoption, and a review of the Local Plan 
documents was underway.  The Local Plan review would update local planning 
policies, where necessary, to take account of the latest National Planning Policy 
Framework and National Planning Practice Guidance. It would also review and 
supplement the allocation of land for housing and employment to meet latest evidence 
of need. The review also provided an opportunity to ensure local planning policy 
reflected the needs of communities and priorities and objectives in the Council Plan 
where these could be advanced through the planning of new development. 
 
Robust and up-to-date evidence was essential to ensuring that the Local Plan was 
justified and found sound at independent examination. Studies were undertaken where 
possible by the Council’s planning policy officers, but in some areas it was necessary 
to obtain external professional expertise.  Approval was, therefore, being sought for the 
addition to the procurement schedule of the further evidence studies and professional 
advice set out below, to be undertaken during (or commence within) year 2019/20. 
These could be undertaken within existing budgets and were each estimated to fall 
below £60,000.  
 

 An Employment Land and Premises Review - this study would provide information 
on the estimated need for employment land and premises over the plan period and 
also assess whether the currently allocated employment sites comprised the right 
amount, type and locations to meet that need. 

    

 Green Infrastructure, Open Space and Sport/Recreation study and strategy - this 
would assess current green infrastructure provision, and its various roles, for 
example for biodiversity, recreation, access and Green Gap review, to inform the 
needs and opportunities to improve green infrastructure through new planned 
development to 2040.  

 

Page 19



10 
26.09.2019 Delegated Executive Decisions 
 

 

Decision 
 
Approval be given for the addition to the 2019/20 Procurement Schedule of the 
studies set out in paragraph 3.4 to the report, as required to contribute to a 
robust evidence base for the Local Plan Review.  
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The decision is in relation to the procurement of additional evidence base studies to 
inform the preparation of the review of the South Lakeland Local Plan. A robust 
evidence base is an important element in plan making, as the soundness of the 
reviewed Local Plan will be the subject of independent examination by an Inspector, 
whose assessment will include considering if the submitted Plan is justified and based 
on proportionate and well-founded evidence. 
 
In addition, the Local Plan Review, supported by robust evidence and professional 
advice, has a fundamentally-important role in delivering the priorities set out in the 
Council Plan (2019-2024) including in relation to the overarching themes of Health and 
Environment, Economy and Culture and Housing and Communities. Specific elements 
of the Local Plan Review relevant to delivering on Council Plan priorities include:- 
 

 Working Across boundaries 
o preparing a new Local Plan 

 Creating balanced communities  
o delivering affordable homes  

 Reducing Inequalities 
o Improving air quality and reducing pollution  

 Sustainable environment and inclusive economy  
o Ensuring new development is sustainable, energy efficient and flood 

resilient 
o Developing town centres which are attractive, and accessible for living, 

working, culture and leisure 
o Encouraging walking and cycling    

 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
The additional evidence and professional advice required, as set out in paragraph 3.4 
of the report, is considered essential to informing and justifying recommendations 
within the Local Plan Review.  The additional professional advice sought cannot be 
obtained within the Council but options will be explored as to whether this may be 
procured jointly with neighbouring authorities.  Studies are undertaken in-house where 
possible.  This option has been considered for the Employment Land and Green 
Infrastructure studies, but it is considered that both require professional expertise not 
available within the Council. 

Page 20



South Lakeland District Council 

Cabinet  

Wednesday, 30 October 2019 

Council Plan Performance Monitoring Quarter 2 
2019/20 

 

Portfolio:   Councillor Giles Archibald - Leader of the Council 

Report from: Claire Gould – Performance, Innovation and Commissioning Lead 
Specialist 

Report Author: John Davies – Case Management Support Services 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 Monitoring the success of the Council Plan through scorecards informs 
improvements and ensures Council services address the needs of residents in an 
open and transparent way. Influenced by the three key values as set out in the 
current Council Plan, this report sets out the Council Plan Priorities and Measures of 
Success. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Cabinet approves:- 

 (1) the Summary of Performance as detailed in the report; and 

 (2) the detailed risks information contained within Appendix 1  

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Council is committed to delivering high quality, cost effective services that meet 
the needs of residents and improve quality of life.  To help achieve our goals, we 
measure performance frequently.  The performance management process helps us 
to demonstrate how well we are doing. Each Council Plan Priority has ‘Measures of 
success’ – allowing progress to be monitored. 

3.2 Reporting is on an exceptions basis with the focus on only significantly good or poor 
performance. This information is presented every three months to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and then to Cabinet and published on the Council’s website. This 
report was presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 25th October 2019. 
Any recommendations made by Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be provided to 
Cabinet for 30th October 2019. 

3.3 Summary of Performance  

The measures listed within this report are showing very good performance - and 
demonstrate that South Lakeland is a very desirable place to live, work and explore. 
However in line with the national trend the number of homeless households living in 

Page 21

Item No.8



temporary accommodation is increasing. South Lakeland District Council’s vision and 
strategy is to improve prosperity ensuring a positive benefit for our community.  

Detailed information for each measure is listed in section 3.4-3.7 below.  

3.4 Culture and Economy - Measures of success 

Measure: By 2025, we will achieve investment enabling the creation of 1,000 new jobs 

in the area.  

 Estimates show that the Council is on target to achieve 1,000 new jobs in the 

area by 2025. Since 01/01/14 an estimated 594 new jobs have been created in 

South Lakeland. The table below shows quarterly estimates. 

1,000 New Jobs 

Year Quarter Number created 

2018 Q1 45 

2018 Q2 36 

2018 Q3 32 

2018 Q4 27 

2019 Q1 16 

2019 Q2 30 (the total since 01/01/2014 is 594 jobs) 

Source: Performance, Innovation and Commissioning – estimate based on NOMIS 
official labour market statistics. 

 

Measure: Between 2015 and 2025, we will have enabled, with the private sector, the 

rise of higher paid jobs and a year-on-year increase in the current median household 

income of £31,189 for people who live in South Lakeland.  

 For 2018 the median income in South Lakeland was £34,706. This is highest 

when compared with other Districts in Cumbria. Also significantly higher than 

Cumbria as a whole at £28,052 and Great Britain at £31,446. (Source: Cumbria 

Intelligence Observatory.) 

Median Household Income 

Year Median Income 

2016 £31,189 

2017 £32,506 

2018 £34,706 

Source: Performance, Innovation and Commissioning – estimate based on NOMIS 
official labour market statistics. 

 

Measure: Between 2015 and 2025, in partnership with the district’s towns and villages, 

the Council will ensure they maintain their distinctive character and thrive commercially 

by supporting and improving the business start-up rate of 90 per 10,000 working 

population year-on-year. 

 Business start-ups in South Lakeland were the highest in Cumbria for 2018/19 

at 76.5 per 10,000 working age residents. This compares to 58.5 for Cumbria 

and 100.1 for England. (Source: Cumbria Intelligence Observatory.) 

Page 22



 

Enterprise Births And Deaths 

Year Total Enterprises (number) 

2012 5,935 

2013 5,880 

2014 5,925 

2015 6,210 

2016 6,270 

2017 6,395 

2018 6,410 

2019 6,430 

Source Business Demography statistics on NOMIS website 

 

3.5 Housing and Communities - Measures of success 

The Council’s Housing Strategy 2016-2025 describes the housing issues within South 
Lakeland. 
 
Measure: By 2025, we will have enabled, with the private sector, the development of 

1,000 new affordable homes to rent. 

 Since 01/01/2014 the total new affordable homes for rent completed is 468. 

The Council is on target to deliver 1,000 new affordable homes for rent by 2025. 

The table below shows quarterly results and a running total. 

1000 New Affordable Homes For Rent Completed 

Year Quarter Number completed Cumulative Total since 01/01/2014 

2017 Q1 18 334 

2017 Q2 8 342 

2017 Q3 14 356 

2017 Q4 41 397 

2018 Q1 7 404 

2018 Q2 24 428 

2018 Q3 29 457 

2018 Q4 4 461 

2019 Q1 0 461 

2019 Q2 7 468 

Source: Customer and Commercial Services 

 

Measure: By 2025, we will have enabled, with the private sector and housing 
associations, an average of 60 completed permanent dwellings each quarter.  

 
 Since 2015 the Council has enabled the completion of 1,030 permanent 

dwellings - an average of greater than 60.5 permanent dwellings over 17 

quarters.  

Permanent Dwellings Completed 

Year Quarter Permanent dwellings completed 

Page 23



2017 Q3 60 

2017 Q4 40 

2017 Q2 50 

2017 Q1 60 

2018 Q1 80 

2018 Q2 80 

2018 Q3 40 

2018 Q4 50 

2019 Q1 40 (average 60.5 over 17 quarters) 

Source: MHCLG Live tables on house building: table 253a 

 

Measure:  By 2025, the number of long-term empty homes will have reduced by 20% 

from 967 homes. 

 The number of long term empty homes fluctuates, however there has been an 

overall reduction from 1,079 (2011) to 980 (2019.) The total number of long 

term empty homes fluctuate as homes are brought back into use - and as 

properties become empty. Homes become empty for a number of reasons - all 

of which are relevant to South Lakeland, for example: people needing care, 

properties becoming inhabitable due to widespread flooding and properties 

being inherited. Second homes also increase results until they are identified.  

The Number of Long-Term Empty Homes 

Year Number of long term empty homes 

2011 1079 

2012 1037 

2013 1026 

2014 957 

2015 971 

2016 827 

2017 973 

2018 987 

2019 980 

Source: MHCLG Live tables on dwelling stock including vacants: table 615 

 

Measure: Between 2015 and 2019, the Council, through targeted interventions will, 

year on year, bring a minimum of 70 empty homes back into use. 

 Since 2015 the Council has brought 361 empty homes back into use. The table 

below shows quarterly results and a running total. 

The Number Of Empty Homes Brought Back Into Use Since 2015 

Year Quarter  
Number of empty homes brought 
back into use 

Cumulative total since 
2015 

2018 Q1 13 253 

2018 Q2 14 267 

2018 Q3 26 293 

2018 Q4 22 315 

Page 24



The Number Of Empty Homes Brought Back Into Use Since 2015 

Year Quarter  
Number of empty homes brought 
back into use 

Cumulative total since 
2015 

2019 Q1 17 332 

2019 Q2 29 361 

Source: Customer and Commercial Services 

 

Measure: The number of homeless households living in temporary accommodation 

will be no more than 20 at any one time. 

 This quarter the maximum number of households in temporary accommodation 

at any one time is in exception. The main reasons for homelessness are: the 

reduced benefits for people of age under 35 years; high rents and loss of private 

sector tenancy; lack of affordable housing; family relationship breakdowns with 

young adults leaving home - sometimes leaving home due to abuse. The 

implementation of the Homelessness Reduction Act in April 2018 has also 

influenced results and this is reflected both regionally and nationally.  

The Maximum Number Of Households In Temporary Accommodation At Any One 
Time 

Year Quarter Maximum number of households at any one time 

2015 Q3 4 

2015 Q4 7 

2016 Q1 17 

2016 Q2 8 

2016 Q3 3 

2016 Q4 4 

2017 Q3 18 

2017 Q4 17 

2017 Q1 9 

2017 Q2 10 

2018 Q1 20 

2018 Q2 21 

2018 Q3 20 

2018 Q4 19 

2019 Q1 21 

2019 Q2 22 

Source: Customer and Commercial Services 

 

Measure: By 2019, the overall level of reported crime will not exceed the 2014/15 level 

of 3,425. Following Police training on the recording of crimes this report suggests a 

new baseline of 5255 crimes - based on total crimes for 2018/19. 

 To date for 2019/20 there have been 2852 crimes. Domestic abuse incidents 

have shown fluctuation over the past four quarters. Increases in the total 

number of crimes are explained by Police training on the recording of crimes.  

Page 25



Total Crimes And Domestic Abuse Incidents 

Year Quarter Total Crimes Total Domestic Abuse incidents 

2017 Q1 981 233 

2017 Q2 964 244 

2017 Q3 1000 217 

2017 Q4 1090 (3054 in 2017/18) 221 (915 in 2017/18) 

2018 Q1 1359 255 

2018 Q2 1248 253 

2018 Q3 1277 241 

2018 Q4 1371 (5255 in 2018/19) 244 (993 in 2018/19) 

2019 Q1 1405 239 

2019 Q2 1447 245 

Source: Cumbria Constabulary 

 

3.6 Environment and Health - Measures of success 

Measure: By 2019, the amount of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and 

composting will increase from 43% to 50%. During the same period the range of 

recyclables will be widened. 

 For 2018/19 a provisional 44.3% of waste has been recycled which is similar to 

44.4% for 2017/18. Green waste influences this result significantly. This is 

because green waste is produced in large quantities and contributes to 

significant tonnages compared to lighter plastic and cardboard. If the Council 

were able to collect food waste this would make the target of 50% much more 

achievable. However, the Council has deferred action on food waste awaiting 

central Government specific plans. Plastic and cardboard kerbside collection 

covers 100% of households.  

Percent Of Household Waste Sent For Reuse, Recycling And Composting 

Year Percentage sent 

2012 43 

2013 43 

2014 43.8 

2015 43.8 

2016 42.4 

2017 44.4 

2018 44.3 

Source: Customer and Commercial Services 

 

Measure: By 2019, the amount of residual household waste not sent for reuse, 

recycling and composting will have reduced from the current baseline of 511kg per 

household 

 South Lakeland’s residual household waste is sent for reuse rather than to 

landfill. The residual waste is processed to provide refuse derived fuel for large 

industrial processes. In line with other councils, residual waste includes grey 

bin waste, waste from litter bins, street sweepings and other sources. The 

tonnage of street sweepings varies significantly each year and therefore 

Page 26



impacts on residual waste totals. The level of residual waste is measured in 

kilos of waste per household per year. Grey bin waste on its own has fluctuated 

from 479kg in 2009/10 down to 389kg for 2018/19.  

Amount Of Residual Household Waste Not Sent For Reuse, Recycling And 
Composting 

Year 
Residual Waste (Kg) 
(includes grey bin waste, waste from litter 
bins, street sweepings and other sources) 

Grey Bin Waste (Kg) 

2010 491 464 

2011 467 443 

2012 490 417 

2013 480 394 

2014 470 405 

2015 495 415 

2016 511 419 

2017 468 399 

2018 469 (provisional) 389  

Source: Customer and Commercial Services 

 

Measure: The Council will, year on year, have reduced its operational carbon footprint 

by 100 tonnes of carbon, from a baseline of 3,162 tonnes. 

 For 2018/19 the total carbon emitted was 2,996 tonnes – a reduction of 166 

tonnes from 3,162 tonnes at 31/03/15 including rolling out recycling collections 

across the district. As well as reducing emissions the Council prevents 5,500 

tonnes of emissions by reusing, recycling and composting nearly all of the 

waste collected across the District. 

Carbon Reduction 

Year Carbon emitted (tonnes) 

2012 3583 

2013 3222 

2014 3162 

2015 3032 

2016 3484 

2017 2992 

2018 2996 

Source: Strategy, Innovation and Resources Directorate 

 

Measure: By 2019, through collaborative and preventative action, the level of self-

reported general health of South Lakeland’s residents will demonstrate an 

improvement above the baseline of 70% as reported in the Quality of Life Survey. 

 The Quality of Life Survey 2017 shows that 72% of residents reported good or 

very good health. Data from Quality of Life Survey 2019 will be available for 

Quarter Four 2019/20 reporting. (Source: Strategy, Innovation and Resources 

Directorate) 

Page 27



Measure: By 2025, the health inequality gap for residents in South Lakeland’s 18 most 

deprived communities will be narrowed resulting in the improved healthy life 

expectancy above the national average of 81 years. 

 Life expectancy from birth for women is 85.0 years (England 83.1 years) and 

for men is 82.2 years (England 79.6 years) - all data 2015-17. Life expectancy 

has improved consistently for many years. 

Life Expectancy From Birth 

Year Women 
SLDC 

WOMEN 
NW 

WOMEN 
ENG 

Men 
SLDC 

MEN 
NW 

MEN 
ENG 

2001/03   81.9 
years,  

79.5 80.7 77.9 
years,   

74.8 76.2 

2014/16   84.6 
years,  

81.1 83.1 81.5 
years,   

78.2 79.5 

2015/17   85.0 
years 

81.8 83.1 82.2 
years 

78.2 79.6 

Source: Public Health England 

 

 Health related quality of life for older people has fluctuated from a score of 

0.772 in 2012/13 to a slightly improved score of 0.788 in 2016/17. Annual 

results for the previous six years are better than the North West and England. 

Health Related Quality Of Life For Older People 

Year Health score SLDC NW ENG 

2012/13   0.772 0.707 0.726 

2013/14   0.770 0.706 0.727 

2014/15   0.783 0.714 0.734 

2015/16   0.771 0.713 0.733 

2016/17   0.788 0.716 0.735 

Source: Public Health England 

 

3.8 Strategic Risk Register – Appendix 1 

All strategic risks in their current stage of development are visible within appendix 1. 
There are 6 strategic risks above the Council’s tolerance for risk and these are being 
managed effectively.  The Strategic Risks have been reviewed in line with risk 
management arrangements.   

Quarterly Risks Summary 

Total number of 
risks: 

15 risks 

New risks: 0 risks 

Archived Risks: 0 risks 

Risks above 
tolerance:  

5 risks 

33% of risks are above tolerance 

(risks above tolerance are reviewed every quarter) 

Page 28



Risks below 
tolerance:   

10 risks 

67% of risks are below tolerance.  

(risks below tolerance are reviewed annually at Quarter 4) 

 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 This report details measures of success against each of the priorities within the 
Council Plan.  These have been consulted on extensively prior to the Plan being 
adopted by Full Council. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 No alternative options – the purpose of the report is to receive a performance update. 
The Council must note successes, monitor progress and take action where 
appropriate. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Reporting measures of success contained within the Council Plan 2019 - 2024. 

6.2 The report is directly linked to the following Council Plan commitment to ensure that 
the Council is equipped to provide the best, most cost effective services. 

6.3 Details regarding performance monitoring are published in line with the Council’s 
current Performance Management Framework. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. However, strategic 
risks can relate to financial issues and are considered as part of the Council’s 
Medium Term Financial Plan, budget preparation and monitoring process. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no human resources implications associated with this report. 

Legal 

7.3 There are no legal implications associated with this report. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No 

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 
Reporting performance has a positive impact on health, social, economic and 
environmental needs. 

7.6 Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: No negative 
impacts. 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 
Reporting performance has a positive impact on equality and diversity needs. 

7.9 Summary of equality and diversity impacts: No negative impacts. 

Page 29



Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

For indicators and performance 
measures not to be monitored, 
corrective action is not identified 
early. 

Ambitions as set out in the 
Council Plan are not 
achieved. 

Recommendations for 
corrective action are 
implemented. 

Good performance is not 
acknowledged. 

Poor morale and 
performance culture. 

Successes are recognised 
and celebrated. 

Contact Officers 

Report Author – John Davies, Case Management Officer, 01539 733333, 
rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
Appendices Attached to this Report 

(delete if no appendices attached) 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Strategic Risk Register 

Background Documents Available 

  

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Detailed Performance information 
– South Lakeland 

South Lakeland Website 

Council Plan – South Lakeland South Lakeland Website 

Performance Management 
Framework – South Lakeland 

South Lakeland Website 

Risk Management Arrangements 
– South Lakeland 

South Lakeland Website 

Description of Nearest 
Neighbours Model - CIPFA  

CIPFA Website 

Benchmarking data - Local 
Government Association 

Local Government Association Website 

Economy data - Office for 
National Statistics Official Labour 
Market Statistics 

Office for National Statistics Website 

Health data - Public Health 
England Public Health Outcomes 
Framework 

Public Health England Website  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 20/09/19 

Section 151 Officer 20/09/19 

Monitoring Officer 20/09/19 

Page 30

mailto:rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/council-business/performance-measures/
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/council-documents/council-plan/
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/council-documents/council-plan/performance/
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/council-documents/council-plan/performance/
http://www.cipfastats.net/default_view.asp?content_ref=8193
http://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/lgastandard?mod-metric=185&mod-period=1&mod-area=E07000031&mod-group=South_Lakeland_CIPFA_Near_Neighbours&modify-report=Apply
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/lmp/la/1946157080/report.aspx?#idbr
http://www.phoutcomes.info/public-health-outcomes-framework#page/0/gid/1000049/pat/6/par/E12000002/ati/101/are/E07000031/iid/92311/age/1/sex/4


Signed off by Date sent 

SMT 10/10/19 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director 20/09/19 

Human Resources Manager 20/09/19 

Communications Team 20/09/19 

Leader  

Committee Chairman  

Portfolio Holder  

Ward Councillor(s)  

Committee 25/10/19 

Executive (Cabinet) 30/10/19 

Council  

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



Appendix 1 
 

1 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

Strategic Risks Register - Quarter 2, 2019/20 
 

 
Introduction 
 
Risk Management is an essential element of corporate governance arrangements. The process of risk management allows the Council to identify, 
prioritise and mitigate risks which may have a negative effect on services. This is an important and underpinning process which ensures good value for 
money and also continuity of services.  
 
Risks are recognised as essential management information and so contribute towards decision making. This document lists all those risks which are 
considered as strategic in nature – in other words those risks that could have a wide impact or require senior management control. 
 
This Strategic Risks Register is reviewed and updated every quarter by Senior Management Team. Risks above the line of tolerance are a priority and 
so are reviewed every quarter – whilst those below tolerance are reviewed once a year. 
 
Strategic risks are by their very nature problematic and so can remain on the register for significant periods of time. 
 
Page 2 and 3 of this report explain the risk matrix and layouts used for the risks. 
 
Page 4 provides a Risk ‘Heat Map’ which provides an ‘at a glance’ view of the priority risks – those currently in the blue zone and so above the line of 
risk appetite/tolerance. 

 
 

 
 
 

P
age 33



Appendix 1 
 

2 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

How to understand the Risk Matrix: 
 
This register contains the full and complete list of the Council’s Strategic Risks. Each risk is plotted on a risk matrix to show degree of likelihood and 
impact. The greater the likelihood and impact the higher the priority for management. Those risks which lay above the line of ‘risk appetite’ can be 
seen in the blue zone of the matrix. These risks are a priority for management and are reviewed every quarter. Risks below the risk appetite, in the 
green zone, are a lower priority and so are reviewed on an annual basis. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The next page shows how the information for each risk is presented.
 

 
 

L
ik

e
li

h
o

o
d

 

High 

    

Medium 

  

x 
 

Low 

 

x 
  

Very Low 

    

 

Negligible Marginal Serious Critical 

 
Impact 

Risks positioned in the blue zone of the risk matrix are above ‘risk 
appetite’ (high priority) and require quarterly mitigation and 
management. Mitigation updates are listed for these risks.  
 

Risks positioned in the green zone of the risk matrix are below 
‘risk appetite’ (lower priority) and require an annual review in 
Quarter Four. 
 

P
age 34



Appendix 1 
 

3 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

How to understand the layout of each risk in this report 
 

  

Risk No. & Name 
The risk name is a concise and clear title for the risk 
 
Description 
A description of the circumstances which help to generate risk 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
The date when this risk will be 
considered and reviewed 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the future 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

  X  

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
The date that the risk must reach the 
target position – through the completion 
of mitigations. 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

A mitigation is an action which is designed 
to reduce or eliminate the risk.  The 
mitigation can improve the likelihood or 
impact of the risk. 

A short update on progress made 
with the mitigation 

The person responsible for 
progressing the mitigation 

Mitigations should be implemented 
by their due dates for the risk to be 
improved effectively. 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For each risk a history of risk review and improvement is shown: 
RISK POSITION IMPROVED ↓  =  a risk review indicates that there is now less risk 
RISK POSITION INCREASED ↑  =  a risk review indicates that there is now more risk 
RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔  =  a risk review indicates that there is the same level of risk 
RISK IDENTIFIED ●  =  a newly identified risk is entered onto this register 

  Risk Owner The person with sufficient authority to control this risk  Portfolio the Portfolio that this risk is relevant to  

 

P
age 35



Appendix 1 
 

4 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

Risk ‘Heat Map’ - showing the current position of all risks in this report 

 
This matrix provides an ‘at a glance’ view of the priority risks which are positioned in the blue zone and so are above the line of risk 
appetite/tolerance. Click on a risk to navigate to the right page. 

 
 
 
 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

High 

    

Medium 

 Risk 5 Risk 6 
Risk 14 
Risk 15 
Risk 20 
Risk 21 

 

Low 

 Risk 13 
Risk 18 

Risk 4 
Risk 7 
Risk 9 
Risk 19 

 

Very 
Low 

  Risk 8 
 

Risk 16 
Risk 17 

 

Negligible Marginal Serious Critical 

 
Impact 

67% of risks are positioned 
in the green zone - below 
the line of ‘risk appetite’ 

P
age 36



Appendix 1 
 

5 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

Strategic Risks Register 
 

  Risk 1 was archived during quarter 1 2016/17 
Risk 2 was archived during quarter 4 2018/19 
Risk 3 was archived during quarter 1 2018/19 

 
 

  

Risk 4 

Affordable housing targets are not met. 
 
Description 
There is a risk that the Council may not achieve the Council Plan target: ‘By 2025 we 
will have enabled with the private sector the development of 1,000 new affordable 
homes for rent’. The Council will need to enable delivery of new affordable and open 
market housing particularly through private sector led development across the 
district. Performance is influenced by New Homes Bonus and Local Government 
Financing. 
 
Back to ‘Heat Map’ 
 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Review Date 
Annual – end of March 
 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

  X  

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/20 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Mitigations are not applicable as risk is below 
tolerance 

n/a n/a n/a 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION - This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q4 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - This risk will be retained on the register to allow regular monitoring.  
Q4 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that housing performance is on track. 

  Risk Owner Director of Customer and Commercial Services Portfolio Deputy Leader – Housing and Innovation Portfolio 
 

P
age 37



Appendix 1 
 

6 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

 
 

  

Risk 5 

Impact of the Welfare Reform on communities 

 
Description 
The Council maintains this risk to mitigate as far as possible against the impacts of 
welfare reform. Welfare reform is a major element of recent government spending cuts 
resulting in significant changes to taxes and benefits - impacting on low-income tenants 
and social landlords. With the transfer to Universal Credit there have been widely 
reported issues and impacts on claimants across England. Central Government monitor 
the impacts of welfare reform and makes mitigating adjustments. Also South Lakeland 
District Council has put in place a series of mitigations which seek to reduce impacts – 
these mitigations can be seen below.  
 
The current risk position is proportionate in terms of the likelihood and impact across 
the whole of South Lakeland. The Council has put in place many mitigations to reduce 
poverty and to alleviate against universal credit impacts - the main mitigations are 
listed below. 
 
Back to ‘Heat Map’ 
 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

 X   

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Review Date 
Annual – end of March 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/20 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Revenues and Benefits has regular ‘Keep in 
Touch’ meetings with Department for Work 
and Pensions (DWP) and also Citizens Advice 
(CAB) 

These regular meetings share 
intelligence and situational awareness 
on any adverse impacts. 

Operational Lead Support Services Regular meetings are in place 

Revenues and Benefits ‘Discretionary Housing 
Payment’  

This payment eases financial pressures 
for eligible claimants 

Operational Lead Support Services Mitigating payments are in place 
for eligible claimants 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme This payment helps to reduce the  
financial pressures for eligible 

Operational Lead Support Services Mitigating payments are in place 
for eligible claimants 

P
age 38



Appendix 1 
 

7 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

claimants 

Building Financial Resilience Group was set up 
by South Lakeland District Council – it is a 
multi agency collaboration to reduce poverty. 

This group meets on a regular basis 
and delivers on a poverty reduction 
(financial resilience) action plan. 

Operational Lead Support Services Regular meetings are in place 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION - This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q4 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - The risk will be retained on the risk register whilst there is a potential for impacts. 
Q4 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - This risk received a special review at the request of Audit Committee. It was felt that the current risk 
position was proportionate in terms of the likelihood and impact across the whole of South Lakeland. The Council has put in place many mitigations 
to reduce poverty and alleviate against universal credit impacts and these are now listed. 

  Risk Owner Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources Portfolio Health, Wellbeing and Financial Resilience Portfolio 

P
age 39



Appendix 1 
 

8 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

 
 

  

Risk 6 

Medium Term Financial Planning – delivery of a balanced budget 
 
Description 
Current and future years proposed budget reductions (expenditure and income) are 
not achieved. Future year’s budget reductions (expenditure or income) are not 
identified. Significant existing income sources are not protected or effectively 
managed. Income from Central Government is reduced above the current 
assumptions. NDR income assumptions are not achieved. Other key factors are the 
one year Spending Review 2019 and the delay of Business Rates Retention and the 
Fair Funding Review untill April 2021. 
 
Back to ‘Heat Map’ 
 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Review Date 
Quarterly 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
Annual – end of March   

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

MTFP assumptions are reviewed, updated and 
reported on a quarterly basis 

Mitigation is in place and on track Finance Lead Specialist Each quarter 

Options to resolve any issues are provided to 
the Cabinet each quarter 

Mitigation is in place and on track Finance Lead Specialist Each quarter 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
02/08/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates that no change is required to the position of this risk on the risk matrices. 
Q2 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change to risk position. 
Q3 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates that the risk position remains unchanged. 
Q4 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that the level of risk remains the same. 
Q1 2019/20: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that the level of risk remains the same. 
Q2 2019/20: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that the level of risk remains the same. Risk description updated. 

  Risk Owner Finance Lead Specialist Portfolio Finance and Resources Portfolio 
 

P
age 40



Appendix 1 
 

9 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

 

  

Risk 7 

Information Management is not effective 
 
Description 
The Council is required to have effective information governance procedures. It will 
be necessary to manage corporate information by implementing processes, roles and 
controls - including GDPR and the Data Protection and Information Security Policies. 
 
Back to ‘Heat Map’ 
 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Review Date 
Annual 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/12/19 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Continue to reinforce key standards and 
policies via regular communication. Ensure 
Managers are appropriately trained and 
requirements are clearly set out in Job 
Descriptions and reinforced via appraisals. 
Ensure Internal Audit findings are acted on in 
a timely manner. 

Update 27/03/19: Training schedule 
designed and on target to be 
delivered in line with Audit for end 
of Dec 2019.  

Performance, Innovation and 
Commissioning Lead Specialist 
 

31/12/19 

Clear and ongoing communications to staff to 
reinforce policies and protocols. Regular 
review and monitoring of arrangements 
across services by Operational Managers 
supported by Information Security/ 
Governance Teams in Policy & Partnerships 
and ICT. 

Update 27/03/19: Training schedule 
designed and on target to be 
delivered in line with Audit for end 
of Dec 2019. 

Performance, Innovation and 
Commissioning Lead Specialist 
 

31/12/19 

The Information Governance (IG) Framework 
was approved by Cabinet on 16 September 
2015 and provides the structure to govern 

This mitigation updated 27/03/19.  
 
In order to implement the 

Performance, Innovation and 
Commissioning Lead Specialist 
 

31/12/19 

P
age 41



Appendix 1 
 

10 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

how the Council captures, creates, accesses, 
secures, manages and shares its information 
both internally and externally. In line with 
Customer Connect Programme, the Council 
had to its approach to information 
governance. 

Information Governance Framework 
it is proposed that a learning 
package deliverable is created. 
It is proposed that the learning 
package deliverable will be 100% e-
learning.  Scope will be provided to 
design and develop workbooks for 
those members of staff without 
access to ICT equipment. 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION - This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four.  
Q3 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Mitigation due dates updated in line with Information Governance Board Highlights Report 
14/12/17. This risk is remains within risk tolerance. 
Q4 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - review indicates no change at this time, relevant mitigations are in place. 
Q4 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates no change. 

  Risk Owner Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources Portfolio Deputy Leader – Housing and Innovation Portfolio 
 

P
age 42



Appendix 1 
 

11 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

 

  

Risk 8 

The infrastructure required to deliver the Council Plan priorities is 
not provided. 
 
Description 
Infrastructure is required to support businesses and housing development objectives. 
The Council will need to implement the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) to 
provide funding stream for infrastructure delivery. There will need to be protocols for 
CIL Governance and an up to date Infrastructure Delivery Plan. 
Due to the impacts of Storm Desmond there may be implications associated with 
future flood resilience measures and infrastructure repairs. 
 
Back to ‘Heat Map’ 
 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

  X  

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Review Date 
Annual – end of March 
 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

 X   

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/20   

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Annual update of Infrastructure Delivery Plan. Review largely complete to be 
reported to Cabinet.  
Update 21/12/16: approach to 
meeting education needs in Kendal 
being worked up by Cumbria County 
Council. Infrastructure Delivery Plan 
will be reported to Cabinet in March 
2017. 
Update 04/04/17: extra time 
required for education aspect due 
date extended to 31/05/17 
 
Completed. Updated Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan reported to Cabinet on 

Strategy Lead Specalist 01/12/16 
Amended to 31/05/17 
 
Completed 13/09/17 

P
age 43



Appendix 1 
 

12 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

September 13th. Significant progress 
on infrastructure delivery including: 
• Kendal highways and transport 
improvements (£3.4m) 
• Ulverston junction improvements 
(£4.5m) including access to Lightburn 
Road employment site through Blue 
Light Hub. 
• Swarthmoor roundabout funding is 
close to being finailsed to enable 
housing development at Swarthmoor 
and Croftlands. 

Development of protocols for CIL Governance. To be reported to Cabinet 
Update 21/12/16: CIL Governance 
Protocols will be reported with 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan to 
Cabinet in March 2017. 
Update 04/04/17: extra time 
required for education aspect due 
date extended to 31/05/17 
 
Completed. CIL Governance 
arrangements approved by Cabinet 
on September 13th. 

Strategy Lead Specalist 01/12/16 
Amended to 31/05/17 
 
Completed 13/09/17 

CIL Review proposed as part of Development 
Management Policies process. 

To be undertaken when draft 
Development Management policies 
are consulted upon in Autumn 2016.  
Update 21/12/16: Viability study 
scheduled for mid 2017 – will update 
viability position in relation to 
affordable housing, CIL and impact of 
Development Management policies. 

Strategy Lead Specalist 01/03/18 
 
Completed 

P
age 44



Appendix 1 
 

13 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

Update 04/04/17: Viability study 
Commisioned. 
Update 13/03/18: Viability study 
completed. 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. There has been positive progress and further collaboration with 
partners on infrastructure needs is required. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION - This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q4 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Updated evidence, in support of the new development management policies, on viability has 
concluded that development can support current levels of CIL. The results of examination will inform the future position of this risk. 
Q4 2018/19: RISK POSITION IMPROVED ↓ -  Review indicates that this risk has reduced in terms of likelihood due to greater certainty and 
confidence in meeting infrastructure requirements. 

  Risk Owner Strategy Lead Specialist Portfolio Deputy Leader – Housing and Innovation Portfolio 
 P

age 45



Appendix 1 
 

14 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

 

  

Risk 9 

Essential strategic partnerships required to deliver the Council Plan 
do not operate effectively. 
 
Description 
Where necessary robust agreements will be needed. Also opportunities and resource 
implications should be identified. Partnerships will need to work supportively to 
achieve Council Plan objectives. 
The introduction of NHS STP’s and the movement of South Cumbria CCG’s into 
Lancashire/Morecambe Bay in April 2017 required new strategic partnerships to be 
formed with these groups to ensure SLDC and its communities gain maximum benefit 
from any changes. This risk applies to all our strategic partnerships, such as the Local 
Enterprise Partnership (LEP), CCC, LDNPA and Morecambe Bay Economic Partnership 
as examples. The risk is not specific to any one initiative or approach from partner 
organisations, rather the strategic direction and policies that they take and make, and 
their correlation to SLDC achieving its aims and objectives through its Council Plan. 
 
Back to ‘Heat Map’ 
 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Review Date 
Annual – end of March 
 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/20 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Monitor resource, cost and reputational 
impact with established strategic partnerships 

No cost implications to the council in 
maintaining partnerships 

Chief Executive 31/03/19 annual review 
 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q2 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED - ↔ -  SMT review indicates no change to position of risk.  Officer representation on the Morecambe Bay 
CCG has now been offered and accepted. Meeting held with Northern Powerhouse Minister 27/09/18 -  Morecambe Bay Prospectus discussed and 
future meetings agreed with Government departments. 
Q3 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED - ↔ -  SMT review indicates that the position of risk remains unchanged. Further discussions ongoing 
across Morecambe Bay on economic initiative and health. Await outcome of County Council unitary debate in December 2018 to see if more 
collaborative partnership is envisiaged going forward. 

P
age 46



Appendix 1 
 

15 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

Q4 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that the position of this risk remains the same. Morecambe Bay discussions are 
ongoing although Health partners less so. Improved discussions with CCC over the last few months. 
Q1 2019/20: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that the position of this risk remains the same. SLDC continues to improve 
collaborative working throuout Cumbria local authorities, though new relations are needed following the May 2019 elections. SLDC has now 
connected with the relevant Morecambe Bay Health partners and work is underway to identify key areas of working. The Morecambe Bay Three 
Authority partnerships continues to develop within the North West and Government. 
Q2 2019/20: RISK POSITION IMPROVED ↓ -  Review indicates that this risk has reduced in terms of likelihood. There have been improvements in 
the relationships with all the authorities across Morecambe Bay, local authority and health partners. There are general improvements also 
observed with one Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), County Council and our National Parks. Town and Parish Councils through CALC have a 
positive narrative when dealing with SLDC. 
This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 

  Risk Owner Chief Executive  Portfolio Leader – Promoting South Lakeland 

P
age 47



Appendix 1 
 

16 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

 

  Risk 10 was archived during quarter 1 2016/17 

Risk 11 was archived during quarter 1 2016/17 

Risk 12 was archived during quarter 4 2018/19 
 
 

 

Risk 13 

Impact of new projects and initiatives on existing Council Plan 
priorities 

 
Description of risk 
There is a risk that new projects and initiatives take the resources required by other 
projects and initiatives currently in the programme.  
 
Back to ‘Heat Map’ 
 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 x   

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
 
Next Review Date 
Annual – end of March 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 x   

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/20 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Ensure that potential new projects and 
initiatives are subject to a pre-assessment 
which measures their priority 

Completed and ongoing 
requirement. 
Update 10/11/16: Reinforce the 
assessment and prioritisation of new 
projects – review in six months. 
Update 18/01/18: the assessment 
and prioritaisation of projects is an 
ongoing requirement. 
 

Director of Strategy, Innovation and 
Resources 

Ongoing requirement 
 
 

History  
of Risk 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q4 2016/17: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change.  

P
age 48



Appendix 1 
 

17 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

Improvement Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION - This risk is within risk tolerance and requires an annual review during Quarter Four. 
Q2 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED - ↔ - SMT review indicates no change however to be reviewed at quarter three subject to prioritisation 
of resources. 
Q4 2017/18: RISK POSITION IMPROVED ↓ - Review indicates that likelihood is low with existing controls. Controls will continue to be applied 
including prioritisation against Strategic Projects Log. 
Q4 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that this risk remains the same. 

Risk Owner Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources Portfolio Deputy Leader – Housing and Innovation Portfolio 

P
age 49



Appendix 1 
 

18 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

 

Risk 14 

Unintended impacts of efficiencies and service changes 
 
Description of risk 
New efficiencies and changes brought about by one service or another organisation 
can have unintended negative impacts on the efficiency and running of another 
service – especially if proposals are not consulted on until to late in the process. These 
impacts can increase the cost of running other services. Focus required on the expiry 
of the Second Homes agreement between Cumbria County Council and South 
Lakeland District Council. This position of this risk is also influenced by Risk 15 
Customer Connect Programme. 
 
Back to ‘Heat Map’ 
 

Current Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  x  

    

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly 

 
Next Review Date 
Quarterly 

Target Position of Risk 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 x   

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date 
31/03/20 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

This risk is managed via the Service Planning 
and Budgeting processes.  

Completed Director of Strategy, Innovation and 
Resources  
Lead Specialists 

Mitigations in place within 
existing Service Planning and 
Budgeting processes. 

Promote early discussions on potential change 
with external parties 

New mitigation on 10/11/16 
06/07/17: Mitigations underway and 
ongoing 

Director of Strategy, Innovation and 
Resources  

In place and ongoing requirement 

Customer Connect mitigations The programme is being managed 
via the Programme Board to deliver 
year 1 and 2 of the programme. 
Please refer to Risk 15 Customer 
Connect Programme for progress. 

Director of Strategy, Innovation and 
Resources 

Please refer to Risk 15 Customer 
Connect Programme for key due 
dates. 

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q1 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. Mitigations are in progress. 
Q2 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change – this risk is linked to ‘Risk 15: Customer Connect’. 

P
age 50



Appendix 1 
 

19 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

Q3 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - SMT review indicates no change 
Q4 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Review indicates no change due to period of organisational change and ongoing partnership 
discussions. 
Q1 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Review indicates no change for the reasons listed previously at Q4 2017/18. Target date reviewed 
and set to 31/03/2019. 
Q2 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - Review indicates no change to position of risk. 
Q3 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ - The position of this risk remains unchanged during organisational change. 
Q4 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that risk remains unchanged during organisational change. 
Q1 2019/20: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that risk remains unchanged during organisational change. 
Q2 2019/20: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review maintains risk position during organisational change. 

Risk Owner Director of Customer and Commercial Services Portfolio Deputy Leader – Housing and Innovation Portfolio 
 
 

P
age 51



Appendix 1 
 

20 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

 
 

  

Risk 15 

Customer Connect Programme 
 
Description 
The programme fails to deliver what’s set out in the programme definition and 
customer contact strategy. 
Customer Connect is a challenging programme that requires significant change 
to ways of working for staff across the Council. The Programme Board manages 
the Customer Connect Risk Log on a regular basis. Mitigations are in place for 
the risks and the main challenges to the programme are: Scope and Ambition, 
Staff resources and capacity, Skills and Workforce Planning, Buy in from 
Customers and Training and development for staff and Councillors. 
 
Back to ‘Heat Map’ 
 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  X  

    

    

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
Each quarter 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  X  

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
31/03/20 

  

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

The programme is being managed via the 
Programme Board with resources 
identified to deliver year 1 and 2 of the 
programme. 

Financial resources are set aside 
for the programme, but there is a 
requirement to identify all the 
staff needed over the next two 
years to support the projects 
 
Update 07/06/17: In May 2017 
membership of the Programme 
Boards was revised and updated 
to reflect the additional roles 
required to deliver the various 
projects within the programme.   
 
Update 05/06/18: An external 

Performance, Innovation and 
Commissioning Lead Specialist 

01/07/2017 
Completed 

P
age 52



Appendix 1 
 

21 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

partner is providing assurance to 
the programme using experience 
gained from similar 
transformation programmes. 
 
Update: 05/07/18: Revised 
business case to be considered by 
Cabinet on 18/07/18 and Council 
on 24/07/18. This sets out a 
number of risks which will be 
managed as part of the 
programme. 
 
Update: 26/09/18: Business Case 
approved and implementation 
underway. Significant progress in 
all workstream areas. Staff 
appointed to programme roles. 
Programme Board meets weekly. 
Audit Committee reciving regular 
reports. Management Structure 
agreed at Council  on 10/10/18. 

There is a risk log for the programme. This 
is shared with the Audit Committee on a 
quarterly basis.  
 

SMT have ownership of all the 
risks and identified mitigations -  
completed.  
 
Update 25/09/2019: All risks have 
been updated and reviewed as 
part of 2019 monitoring via the 
customer connect board. Audit 
committee have reviewed all risks 
from q1 to q3 reporting in 2019. 
There are currently 45 risks on 

Performance, Innovation and 
Commissioning Lead Specialist 
 
 
Performance, Innovation and 
Commissioning Specialist 

15/04/2018 
Completed 
 
 
 

P
age 53



Appendix 1 
 

22 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

the register, none of which are 
above the line of appetite. 

All risks on the Customer Connect risk log 
were updated during April 2018. The risks 
are reviewed on a regular basis and 
managed accordingly. 

All risks above the line are being 
managed and have mitigations in 
place to reduce the likelihood.  
The Senior Responsible Owner 
has taken direct responsibility for 
managing the partnership 
arrangements with Eden.  

Performance, Innovation and 
Commissioning Lead Specialist 

Regular risk reviews are in place. 

  

History  
of Risk Improvement 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q1 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED - ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. Mitigations updated. 
Q2 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED - ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. Mitigations updated on 26/09/18. 
Q3 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED - ↔ - SMT review indicates no change. 
Q4 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED - ↔ -  Review indicates that this risk remains unchanged.  
Q1 2019/20: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED - ↔ -  Review indicates that this risk remains unchanged.  
Q2 2019/20: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED - ↔ -  Review indicates that this risk remains unchanged.  

  Risk Owner Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources Portfolio Deputy Leader – Housing and Innovation Portfolio 

 

P
age 54



Appendix 1 
 

23 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

 

  

Risk 16  

Waste Collection – Reversing Manoeuvres 
 
Description 
Management of waste collection vehicle manoeuvres on recycling and waste 
collection rounds. 
There are many practical and advanced technological safety precautions in 
place including the following: 
Waste collection rounds have risk assessments and safe systems of work in 
place. 
All drivers and crews have been trained. 
All rounds are monitored to ensure that safe systems are adhered to. 
Vehicles have advanced technologies fitted e.g. reversing CCTV and 
sophisticated radar to assist the driver and crews manoeuvre safely 
 
Back to ‘Heat Map’ 
 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

   x 
Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
Annual – end of March 
 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

   X 

Impact 
Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
Target met   

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Maintain and keep up to date the Safe 
System of Work, inspections and the 
utilisation of risk reducing technologies. 

In progress and reviewed by the 
Street Scene Health and Safety 
Working Group on a quarterly 
basis 

Operational Lead Delivery and 
Commercial Services 

Ongoing requirement 

Commission specialist support to assist in 
the completion of a further review of 
vehicle movements including reversing on 
private drives, private roadways and 
narrow access highways  

Update 17/11/16: Support 
commissioned and interim report 
received. Considering key actions 
for the service within operational 
health and safety plans. 
Completed. 

Operational Lead Delivery and 
Commercial Services 

31/12/16 
Completed. 

P
age 55



Appendix 1 
 

24 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

Implement the priority findings of the 
above review  

Specific Action plan has been 
developed to implement the 
findings of the review. High 
Priority Areas have been 
identified and the 
implementation of necessary 
changes commenced and planned 
for completion by amended due 
date of 31/12/17. 
Completed. 

Operational Lead Delivery and 
Commercial Services 

31/12/17 
Completed. 

Implement the lower priority findings of 
the above review 

Planned for completion by 
31/12/17.  
Update 15/01/18: lower priority 
findings will now be completed by 
31/03/18. 
Update 13/03/18: Now complete. 
There will be an ongoing review 
of all manoeuvres as part of 
business as usual arrangements. 

Operational Lead Delivery and 
Commercial Services 

13/03/18 
Completed 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
Q2 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED - ↔ - SMT review indicates no change – work is in progress. 
Q3 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED - ↔ - All Ulverston rounds have been assessed and mitigating measures introduced. Results have 
been provided to the Health and Safety Committee 15th January 2018. Some lower priority areas remain pending with completion expected 
before end March 2018. Risk position remains the same until all reversing manoeuvres are assessed and mitigating measures have been 
implemented as required. 
Q4 2017/18: RISK POSITION IMPROVED - ↓ - Review indicates that risk has been reduced to the target position due to completed mitigations. 
Decision made not to archive risk in order to maintain awareness.  
Q4 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that this risk remains the same in terms of likelihood and impact. 

  Risk Owner Director of Customer and Commercial Services Portfolio Health, Wellbeing and Financial Resilience Portfolio 

 

P
age 56



Appendix 1 
 

25 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

 

Risk 17 

Cyber Security incident 
 
Description 
There have been many high profile examples of cyber security breaches across 
the World and in the UK recently. The Council has effective security in place to 
protect data and deliver services - however threats are becoming ever more 
sophisticated and organisations need to be one step ahead. Cyber-attacks can 
cross international boundaries and may be initiated by organised criminal 
groups, lone individuals or be state sponsored. Cyber criminals are broadening 
their efforts towards UK citizens, organisations and institutions. Terrorists are 
conducting low-level attacks and aspire to carry out more significant acts. 
Examples of threats are Botnets, Distributed denial-of-service, Hacking, 
Malware, Pharming, Phishing, Ransomware and Spam. 
 
Back to ‘Heat Map’ 
 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 
 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

    

    

    

   x 
Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
Annual – end of March 
 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 
 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

 

    

    

    

  x  

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
31/03/20 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

Cyber security actions within the ICT Risk 
Register  

Cyber security actions are on 
track 

Digital Lead Specialist In line with cyber security due dates  

Review of Insurance  Mitigation added 12/10/17 
Update 15/01/18: Predicted 
complete by 31/01/18 for 
insurance renewal deadline. 

Finance Lead Specialist 31/12/17 
Completed 

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

For previous updates please see earlier versions of this risk register. 
RISK IDENTIFIED ●  =  Audit Committee of 26/07/17 suggested that the Information management risks should be split to create this separate risk 
for Cyber Security. Agreed on 08/08/17 by the Monitoring Officer. 
Q2 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED - ↔ - SMT review indicates likelihood very low and impact critical. Additional insurance mitigation 
added. ICT maintains up to date software patches. Staff have guidance on how to keep IT Networks Secure and what to do if a virus or malware is 

P
age 57



Appendix 1 
 

26 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

suspected. 
Q4 2017/18: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED - ↔ - The risk remains very low. ICT continue to maintain security related Microsoft updates, virus 
software updates and follow industry best practice. Business Continuity arrangements are strengthened.  
Q4 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that this risk remains at very low likelihood  

Risk Owner Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources Portfolio Deputy Leader – Housing and Innovation Portfolio 

 

P
age 58



Appendix 1 
 

27 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

 
 

  

Risk 18 

Potential reduction in income from the disposal of 
recyclable materials as a consequence of market changes 
 
Description 
China has made a decision to receive only very low contaminated recycled 
waste. As a consequence there will be very large quantities of waste across 
the UK and other international countries that will not be eligible for sending 
to China. Without an alternative outlet for large quantities of contaminated 
recyclable waste the market value of this waste will fall significantly. South 
Lakeland District Council’s waste collection approach is to separate 
recyclables in a way that mitigates against contamination and maintains a 
high quality product so may be less affected by new policy from China. The 
advantageous position that South Lakeland has is confirmed in a recent 
APSE report. However the income provided from waste recycling is 
significant and would have a large impact on services should it be reduced 
drastically. 
 
Back to ‘Heat Map’ 
 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 x   

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
Annual – end of March 
 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

    

 X   

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
31/03/20 

  

  Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

  

The Council already has legally 
compliant, waste recycling processes in 
place that minimise contamination. 

Complete and in place Director of Customer and Commercial 
Services 

Complete and in place 

  

The Council continues to maintain a high 
profile message to residents to avoid 
contamination of recyclable materials 
placed out for collection. 

Ongoing Operational Lead Delivery and 
Commercial Services 

Ongoing 

P
age 59



Appendix 1 
 

28 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

  
History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

13/03/18: RISK IDENTIFIED ●  =  This risk identified by Assistant Director Neighbourhood Services and Community and Leisure Manager. Risk 
prepared for escalation from operational level to Senior Management Team and approved for inclusion on the Strategic Risks Register. 
Q4 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that this risk remains the same due to the lowered market value of waste. 

  Risk Owner Director of Customer and Commercial Services Portfolio Climate Emergency and Localism Portfolio 

 
 
 

P
age 60



Appendix 1 
 

29 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

 

  

Risk 19 

Business Continuity: Flu Pandemic - Loss of people, skills 
and supply chain disruption 
 
Description 
Flu Pandemic is listed with the top three risks and rated ‘Very High’ in the 
Cumbria Community Risk Register. This is because the new virus would be 
an unknown quantity - therefore people will have no immunity and 
effective antivirals may not be available for six months. In addition to this all 
services will be affected by staff absences at a time when demand will 
increase on services.  
 
Planning assumptions for the reasonable worst case scenario: 

 Clinical attack rates of up to 50% of the population in total, spread 
over one or more waves each of around 12 – 15 weeks. Peak clinical 
attack rate Locally, 10% - 12% of population per week 

 Small teams within larger organisations should plan for 30-35% 
absenteeism in addition to usual absenteeism levels on any given 
day. 

Staff will be absent from work if: 

 They are ill with flu. 

 They need to care for dependants who are ill with flu 

 They need to care for children due to school closures 

 They have non-flu medical problems 

 Their employers have advised them to stay away from work 

 This may be unevenly distributed throughout organisations 

 They will require time for dealing with personal bereavements with 
an increase in compassionate leave and stress 

 They fear becoming ill 
 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  x  

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Review Date: 
Annual – end of March 
 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

  x  

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
Target Date: 
31/03/20 

  

P
age 61



Appendix 1 
 

30 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

Impact: 
Absenteeism levels in small teams within Large Organisations at 30-35%.  
Flu Pandemic would place an unprecedented demand on local authorities, 
Police, Coroner and undertakers. It is likely that schools would be closed 
causing further absences from work. It is highly likely that mutual aid would 
be difficult. All the above issues and many more were highlighted during the 
multi-agency Cumbria Flu Pandemic Exercise on 03/07/2018.  Business 
Continuity was highlighted as key for meeting statutory obligations. A 
number of effective Business Continuity mitigations are in place. 
 
Back to ‘Heat Map’ 
 

  Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

 

Capture and implement the 
recommendations and mitigations 
identified within the Cumbria Flu 
Pandemic Exercise report. 

Awaiting Cumbria Flu Pandemic 
Exercise report. 
Report now available with 
recommedations. 

Strategy Lead Specialist Implement by 31/03/20 

 

Benchmark with Cabinet Office ‘Flu 
pandemic Checklist for businesses’ and 
include actions within Business 
Continuity Plans where necessary. 

Benchmarking with checklist 
completed. 

Strategy Lead Specialist Necessary actions included in Business 
Continuity Plans – completed. Internal 
Audit result of ‘Substantial Assurance’ 
for Business Continuity. 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

13/03/18: RISK IDENTIFIED ●  =  This risk identified following Cumbria Flu Pandemic Exercise 3rd July 2018. Escalation agreed to the Strategic 
Risk Register. Risk reviewed on 16/08/18 as below risk appetite with Likelihood Low and Impact Serious. 
27/09/18: Mitigations improved and updated. October 2018: Internal Audit result of ‘Substantial Assurance’ for Business Continuity. 
Q4 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that this risk remains at Likelihood Low and Impact Serious. 

  Risk Owner Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources Portfolio Leader – Promoting South Lakeland 

 
 

P
age 62



Appendix 1 
 

31 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

  

Risk 20 

Capacity for Business as Usual during the transition to the 
new organisational model. 
 
Description 
There is a business continuity risk that vacancies are not adequately filled for 
roles that are critical – ie those roles which are essential for the running of 
the organisation and for meeting the health and welfare needs of the public.  
Also there will be an impact on the business while staff are moving through 
transition from the current ways of working to learn new processes, 
behaviours etc. 
 
Impact 
A loss of staff and skills has the potential to impact on the organisation and 
the public – especially the public who may be vulnerable due to their 
dependence on vital services. 
 
Back to ‘Heat Map’ 
 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  x  

    

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
 
Review Date: 
Quarterly 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 X   

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date: 
31/03/20 

  

  Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

  

Transition Planning to mitigate against 
the impact of BAU failing or reducing 
performance while staff are moving to 
new ways of working. 

Change management plan,  
BCM business critical plan 

Director of Strategy, Innovation and 
Resources. 
Performance, Innovation and 
Commissioning Lead Specialist. 

31/03/20 

 

Culture Change and learning & Skill 
development planning to mitigate the 
loss of skills and knowledge.   

Learning & Development Plan 
Skills analysis  
Change management Plan 

Director of Strategy, Innovation and 
Resources.  
Performance, Innovation and 
Commissioning Lead Specialist. 

31/03/20 

  
History  
of Risk 

02/11/2018: RISK IDENTIFIED ●  =  This risk identified by Partnerships and Organisational Development. Risk prepared for Senior 
Management Team for consideration for inclusion on the Strategic Risks Register for Q3 reporting. 

P
age 63



Appendix 1 
 

32 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

Improvement Q3 2018/19: Risk approved by Senior Management Team for inclusion on Strategic Risk Register. 
Q4 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that this risk remains at the same level. 
Q1 2019/20: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that this risk remains unchanged. 
Q2 2019/20: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that this risk remains unchanged during organisational change. Mitigation 
due dates aligned with risk ‘target position’ date. 

  Risk Owner Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources Portfolio Deputy Leader – Housing and Innovation Portfolio 

 

P
age 64



Appendix 1 
 

33 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

 

  

Risk 21 

Accountable Body for large value schemes 
 
Description 
SLDC is acting as ‘Accountable Body’ for large value grant aided schemes. In 
simple terms the Council acts as “the bank” for grant monies - making 
payments to scheme deliverers. Robust governance, project appraisal, 
decision making - and clarity over responsibilities and accountabilities will 
manage and mitigate risks. 
 
Impact 
Lack of adequate governance arrangements for the accountable body role 
could lead to a reduction, suspension or withholding of grant; or require the 
repayment of the whole or part of the grant. The current capital programme 
contains approximately £5.3M of ERDF flood scheme with a further £2.3M 
of Coastal Communities Fund and the Cross-a-Moor junction improvement 
scheme. 
 
Back to ‘Heat Map’ 
 

Current Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

  x  

    

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
 
Review Date: 
Quarterly 

Target Position of Risk 
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations. 

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

     

    

 x   

    

Impact 

Green zone: review annually 
Blue zone: manage quarterly  
 
Target Date: 
Prior to project spend 

  

  Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date 

  

Robust arrangements for governance, 
decision making and clarity on 
responsibilities and accountabilities in 
accordance with SLDC Project 
Management Toolkit 

ERDF: Cabinet has approved 
SLDC involvement and Council 
has approved the capital 
programme. 

Operational Lead Specialist Services Before commencement of project spend 

  

Partnership Agreement between 
partners and the Council as Accountable 
Body, setting out the respective roles, 
duties and responsibilities. It will include 

ERDF: agreed 
Others: tbc 

Operational Lead Specialist Services Before commencement of project spend 

P
age 65



Appendix 1 
 

34 
Version: 01/10/2019 
 

how the costs of fulfilling the role and 
how the Council will be indemnified in 
respect of legal claims, losses; reliance 
on external advisors. 

 

Ensure a monitoring process to identify 
possible weaknesses or risks in the 
operation of projects and provide for 
corrective action to be taken. Each 
material scheme to be included in 
Operational Risk Registers and 
monitored accordingly. 

Project initiation visit from 
MHCLG September 2019. 

Operational Lead Specialist Services During project and until full recovery of 
costs from grant body - and external 
audit where required. 

 

Use of internal audit to ensure evidence 
in accordance with document retention 
requirements and ensure that local grant 
recipients retain original evidence. 

To be included in consideration 
of risk based audit 

Finance Lead Specialist Annually for April Audit Committee 

  

History  
of Risk 
Improvement 

28/11/2018: RISK IDENTIFIED ●  =  This risk identified by Finance and prepared for Senior Management Team for consideration for inclusion 
on the Strategic Risks Register for Q3 reporting. 
Q3 2018/19: Risk approved by Senior Management Team for inclusion on Strategic Risk Register. 
Q4 2018/19: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that the current risk position remains the same. 
Q1 2019/20: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that the current risk position remains unchanged. 
Q2 2019/20: RISK POSITION UNCHANGED ↔ -  Review indicates that the current risk position remains unchanged. Risk ‘Impact’ and 
mitigations updated. 

  Risk Owner Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources Portfolio Finance and Resources Portfolio 

 

P
age 66



South Lakeland District Council 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 30 October 2019 

Scaling on street charging Infrastructure (SOSCI) 

 

Portfolio:   Climate Emergency and Localism Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

Report Author: Sean Hall – Principal Specialist (Health & Environment) 

Wards:   

Forward Plan: Key Decision included in the Forward Plan as published on 1st 
October 2019. 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

That South Lakeland District Council (SLDC) will continue to be involved with its 100% 
funded role in the Innovate UK funded project. This will see electric vehicle (EV) charge 
points installed at a small number of locations within the District which are aimed at the 
residential market where no off street charging is currently available.  

The benefits to the Council are: 

 This provides opportunity to work collaboratively with public bodies, charities, private 
businesses and residents to research the use of electric vehicles. 

 The research obtained through this project could be used in considering future 
support for EV charging infrastructure within the district.  

 The District would benefit from the installation of EV charging points at a small 
number of locations (currently estimated at least 7 sites).  

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet approve future involvement in this project and 
agree that:  

(1) The Director of Customer & Commercial Services in consultation with 
the Climate Emergency and Locality Portfolio holder, the Finance 
Portfolio holder, and the Lead Specialist for Legal Governance and 
Democracy be given delegated authority to negotiate and sign the 
Collaboration Agreement with Cybermoor Ltd and the project partners 
and accept the grant conditions. 

(2) That an appraisal of Council owned sites be undertaken which will 
identify their suitability for this project, to be commissioned by the 
Operational Lead for Delivery & Commercial Services. 

(3) That the successful grant funds are allocated to the project being the 
amount of £187,640.00 to be used in the implementation of the project 
and drawn down  from Innovate UK via the accountable body, 
Cybermoor Service Ltd. 

Page 67

Item No.9



3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 This report relates to SLDC being part of a successful partnership funding award by 
Innovate UK which has secured £3.4m for Scaling On Street Charging Infrastructure 
(SOSCI). 

3.2 This is one of twelve projects that will share £37 million funding to revolutionise the 
experience of owning an electric vehicle in the UK. The government aims for these 
innovations to encourage uptake of electric vehicles which is a key aim of its Road to 
Zero strategy. 

3.3 SLDC is one of twelve partner organisations which include a mix of Public Bodies, 
Charities, and private business. The original amount awarded to SLDC as part of this 
project is £106,260.00 however one of the other original partners has subsequently 
withdrawn from the project and their funding allocation has been reallocated to 
SLDC. This adds £81,380.00 taking the total to £187,640.00. 

3.4       Cybermoor Services Ltd have applied for and received the funding under the 
Innovate UK Programme “Electric vehicle charging for public spaces: real world 
demonstrators.” Innovate UK is part of UK Research and Innovation, a non-
departmental public body funded by a grant-in-aid from the UK government.  The 
Council is being requested to enter into a collaboration agreement with Cybermoor 
Services Ltd who have been selected as the Lead Partner and the other project 
partners.  

3.5 Aims and Objectives of the project 

This is primarily a research project which will take place over an 18 month time 
period and target the domestic residential EV charging market, those households 
located typically in urban and suburban areas with no off street parking. A second 
market identified has been Local Authorities where officers are often approached by 
households on terraced streets to install charging solutions but are restricted in their 
ability to do this through lack of resource.   

This project builds on earlier feasibility studies (also funded by Innovate UK) which 
have allowed the project vision to be developed which aims to deliver: 

 increased take up of electric vehicles, allowing people to save money on fuel 
costs; 

 reduced air pollution and CO2 emissions. 

One of the earlier feasibility projects was undertaken at a location in Lancaster, and 
also one at Broughton in Furness. These projects have supported this application 
and demonstrated that community investment can provide EV charge points and 
stimulate demand for EVs in areas without off street parking. 

The project will implement the activities researched in the feasibility phase, including 
the following elements: 

 planning community owned charging infrastructure in Local Authority areas and 
community lead charge points. This is based on local demand, access to exisiting 
or proposed charge points, mapping data and engagement with local 
stakeholders; 

 incorporating a variety of additional uses into charge point infrastructure including 
renewable energy sources and battery integration, The project will measure the 
social and financial value for stakeholders as well as technical / commercial 
implications of each use case; 

 installing and managing charge points in the different use cases. 

Page 68



 developing an online platform for community investment and evaluating levels of 
community / private / public investment required in different locations (socio-
economic, population density) 

 Building a coherent exploitation plan and business plan 

3.6 The innovation lies in the business model which is aimed at providing local people 
the tools to identify and finance their own charge point, independent of Local 
Authority involvement. It builds on similar projects by assessing commercial impacts 
of integrating other technologies like solar panels on community centres to generate 
additional value. A demand lead approach which encourages local people to invest, 
reduces the risk on public and private investors as they can target funding where 
charge points are most likely to be used. 

The project offers a new way for Local Authorities to stimulate growth of charge 
points, improve air quality and make the most of their limited resources. 

3.6  The costs of the assets, the associated services required and officer time spent on 
the project will be met by the grant funding.  Where goods and services are required 
for SLDC’s role in the project, advice and guidance will be provided by the Council’s 
procurement team.  

3.7 Implementation 

The Initial site appraisal has identified at least seven sites within South Lakeland 
which are suitable to be taken forward as part of this project to a more detailed site 
appraisal and agreement with the respective land owner.  

Should the detailed appraisal of the site deem that it is unsuitable for this project then 
an alternative site will be identified. 

In addition to sites already identified through the initial appraisal process a separate 
appraisal of possible sites within SLDC ownership will take place by the Operational 
Lead for Delivery & Commercial Services. 

Where SLDC is the land owner then following detailed site appraisal and discussion 
with relevant officers, the decision to use our asset for this purpose will be brought 
before members. 

Consideration will be given to the final location of the sites in relation to both the 
proximity to existing EV charge points and also any other scheme which may 
currently be under consideration by County Council or local business.  

3.8 Partner Organisations 

The lead partner will be Cybermoor UK. The organisations listed on the original 
funding application are: 

Juuce Limited 

Miralis Data Limited 

Charge my Street 

Vattenfall UK Sales Limited 

Blackhall Mill Community Association 

Durham County Council 

Cumbria Action for Sustainability 

South Lakeland District Council 

Lake District National Park Authority 

Page 69



Co op Energy 

Carlisle City Council 

Bay camera and communications Limited 

Two partners have subsequently withdrawn which are Co-op Energy and Lake 
District National Park Authority. 

3.9 Approval to sign the collaborative agreement is required to enable the project to 
proceed and for a grant offer letter to be issued by Innovate UK. 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 Consultation has taken place with the Climate Emergency and Localism Portfolio 
holder who is supportive of the Council’s continued involvement in this project. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 SLDC do not participate further in this project. This may result in a missed 
opportunity to both research the demand and installation of charge points locally, and 
also to actually install some EV charge points at a small number of locations within 
district. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Climate Emergency 

 develop plans and support projects with our partners and local communities 
to progressively address the causes and the impacts of climate change, 
according to our local priorities, securing maximum benefit for our 
communities 

 encourage all sectors in our local community to take the opportunity to adapt 
to the impacts of climate change, to reduce their own greenhouse gas 
emissions and to make public their commitment to action 

6.2 Public Health Strategy 

 Tackling Climate change by exploring options associated with EV charging 
points for households with no facility to charge their vehicles and by 
encouraging behaviour change to promote the uptake of electric vehicles. 

6.3 Air Quality 

 Promoting the uptake of Electric vehicles to reduce pollution emissions from 
combustion engines. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 Financial 

This project is 100% funded by Innovate UK and therefore any cost associated with 
the project would be recovered subject to the terms and conditions of the 
collaboration agreement and the grant offer terms and conditions. A Capital budget of 
£187,640.00 will be required to be set up with spend expected over an 18 Months 
period. Advice is being taken concerning the VAT implications of the scheme. 

Further financial appraisal will be required should any SLDC site proceed beyond the 
initial feasibility stage. 

Page 70



7.2 Procurement 

Any procurement of goods and/or services will use both the statutory and council 
framework to ensure that we meet the obligations of openness, fairness and 
transparency  

Any procurement will ensure that the council will meet value for money in this project. 

Human Resources 

7.3 This will be covered by existing staff resource and supplemented by Lambert Smith 
Hampton in relation to appraisal of our own assets. 

Legal  

7.4 Innovate UK awards grant funding through its Research, Development and 
Innovation Scheme operating under Commission Regulation (EU) No 651/2014 (the General 
Block Exemption Regulation (GBER)) and subsequent amendment. With the current position 
on Brexit unknown we will seek assurances these payments will not be reclaimed.  The 
Council will be required to appoint an officer to the Steering Group that will oversee the 
project. Further clarification is being sought on the ownership of the assets and any data, 
utility costs, the insurance position and any ongoing revenue implications. The Council will 
also be seeking clarification on the indemnity requirements for the project and the 
termination clauses to ensure that this is addressed in accordance with our Constitutional 
requirements.  Legal will advise on any further contracts and legal implications arising out of 
the onward use of the funding. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.5 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? Yes (attached at Appendix 1)  

7.6 Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: A number of 
positive Health impacts from this project have been identified from changes in 
Environmental conditions. All other factors result in no impact.  

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis. Yes  

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Financial – recovery of costs 
incurred 

Cost to SLDC that is not 
recoverable through the 
project. 

Clear financial and 
procurement controls in 
place following Innovate 
funding criteria and 
contractual terms and 
conditions 

Customer - Low uptake/usage of 
EV charge points. 

Underuse of installed 
infrastructure. 

The scheme will be widely 
promoted and targeted to 
those properties identified 
during site appraisal  

Partners - revoke their 
participation in the project 

Loss of skills/resources. 
Underuse of grant funding 

Regular liaison with other 
project partners and Lead 
Partner. Continued 
participation in the scheme 
including reallocation of 
funding where required in 

Page 71



Risk Consequence Controls required 

accordance with grant 
terms and conditions. 

Reputational Failure to deliver project Clear achievable targets, 
ongoing performance 
appraisal of project and 
what can be delivered 
following detailed 
appraisal. 

Contact Officers 

Sean Hall, Principal Specialist (Health & Environment) 

s.hall@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Tel 01539 793411 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Health, Social, Economic, and Environmental Impact Assessment 

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Charge my street website and 
information 

https://www.chargemystreet.co.uk  

Initial funding application to 
Innovate UK 

https://1drv.ms/w/s!AqLYHz1WZ8dKgYM0KVtXQ3Qz
GEV5aw?e=VUbF3k  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 15/10/19 

Section 151 Officer 15/10/19 

Monitoring Officer 15/10/19 

CMT 15/10/19 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team 18/10/19 

Leader 18/10/19 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 18/10/19 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) 18/10/19 

Council N/A 

 

Page 72

mailto:s.hall@southlakeland.gov.uk
https://www.chargemystreet.co.uk/
https://1drv.ms/w/s!AqLYHz1WZ8dKgYM0KVtXQ3QzGEV5aw?e=VUbF3k
https://1drv.ms/w/s!AqLYHz1WZ8dKgYM0KVtXQ3QzGEV5aw?e=VUbF3k


SOSCI 
Appendix 1 

 

 South Lakeland District Council 

Health, Social, Economic & Environmental Impact Guidance & Proforma 
 

Project, policy or programme: Scaling on Street Charging Infrastructure (SOSCI) 

Health Impacts Potential Impacts 

Positive No 
impact 

Negative Not 
sure 

Comments Recommendations 

Please tick the appropriate box   

Environmental Conditions 
Air quality 

 

    Reduces pollution 
from vehicles 

 

Water quality and 
pollution 

 

      

Built environment 

 

    Access to charge 
points near to 
dwelling 

 

Natural environment 
and biodiversity 

 

    Reduces pollution 
from vehicles 

 

Energy 
consumption/efficiency 

 

    Energy sourced from 
sustainable supplies 

 

Noise 

 

      

Transport 

 

    Encourages 
behavioural change to 
switch method of 
transport to electric 

 

Recycling 

 

      

Food production 

 

      

Social and Economic Factors 
Employment 

 

      

Income 

 

      

Poverty 

 

      

Education, skills and 
training 

 

      

Housing 

 

      

Crime 

 

      

Page 73



SOSCI 
Appendix 1 

 

Project, policy or programme: Scaling on Street Charging Infrastructure (SOSCI) 

Health Impacts Potential Impacts 

Positive No 
impact 

Negative Not 
sure 

Comments Recommendations 

Please tick the appropriate box   
Work environment 

 

      

Factors that impact a person’s ability to improve their own health and wellbeing 
Nutrition and diet 

 

      

Physical activity 

 

      

Alcohol 

 

      

Drugs 

 

      

Risk taking behaviour 

 

      

Smoking 

 

      

Loneliness and 
isolation 

 

      

Access to services, spaces or social opportunities that impact health 
Communication 
methods 

 

      

Active travel 

 

      

Access to leisure 

 

      

Access to culture 

 

      

Access to green 
spaces 

 

      

 

Page 74


	Agenda
	2 Cabinet Executive Decisions
	3 Delegated Executive Decisions
	26-09-19 Delegated Executive Decisions

	8 Council Plan Performance Monitoring Report Quarter Two
	Council Plan Performance Monitoring Report Quarter Two  - Appendix 1

	9 Scaling on street charging Infrastructure (SOSCI)
	Scaling on street charging Infrastructure (SOSCI)  - Appendix 2


